
  
4 October 2021 

 
Interim Chairman:     Mrs S Whittaker 
 

Venue:  Ergo Connects Centre, 
Bridgehead Business 
Park, Meadow Road, 
Hessle HU13 0GD 

 
Time:  10.00 am E-Mail Address:  

Matthew.nundy@northlincs.gov.uk 
 

AGENDA 
 
1.   Welcome and Introductions   

 
2.   Apologies for Absence   

 
3.   Substitutions   

 
4.   Declarations of Disclosable Pecuniary Interests and Personal or Personal 

and Prejudicial interests (such declarations are to be made in accordance 
with the members' respective council's Code of Conduct).   
 

5.   To take the minutes of the meeting of the panel held on 12 July 2021 as a 
correct record and authorise the chairman to sign.  (Pages 1 - 6) 
 

6.   Humberside Police and Crime Commissioner - Police and Crime Plan - 2021 
- 2025  (Pages 7 - 30) 
 

7.   Humberside Police and Crime Commissioner - Update  (Pages 31 - 34) 
 

8.   Annual Accounts Audit 2020-21  (Pages 35 - 36) 
 

9.   Police and Crime Commissioner Group Finance Summary - Period Ending 
July 2021  (Pages 37 - 40) 
 

10.   Re-appointment of Independent Member to the Humberside Police and Crime 
Panel  (Pages 41 - 44) 
 

11.   Date and time of next meeting - Monday 29 November 2021 at 1:30 pm   
 

12.   Any other items that the Chairman decides are urgent by reason of special 
circumstances that must be specified.   
 

 
 

HUMBERSIDE POLICE AND 
CRIME PANEL 

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



1 

HUMBERSIDE POLICE AND CRIME PANEL 
 

12 July 2021 
 

PRESENT: -  
 
Hull City Council Councillor S Chaytor 
 Councillor D Matthews 
 Councillor L Tock 
 
East Riding of Yorkshire Councillor J Abraham 
Council Councillor B Gateshill 
 Councillor P Nickerson 
 
North East Lincolnshire Councillor J Goodwin 
Council Councillor P Silvester 
 
North Lincolnshire Council Councillor J Davison 
 Councillor R Hannigan 
 
Independent Co-opted Mrs H Chase 
Members Mrs S Whittaker 
 
The meeting was held at the Conference Room, Ergo Centre, Bridgehead Business 
Park, Meadow Road, Hessle, HU13 0GD. 
 
380 WELCOME AND INTRODUCTIONS - The Secretary to the Humberside 

Police and Crime Panel welcomed everyone to the Annual General Meeting.  
With new members appointed to the Panel, the Secretary invited all in 
attendance to introduce themselves and identify the local authority they were 
representing. 
 

381 APPOINTMENT OF CHAIRMAN - Following the opening remarks made by 
the Secretary, the Panel proceeded to elect a Chairman. 
 
It was then – 
 
Moved by Mrs Whittaker and seconded by Councillor Matthews - 
 
That Councillor Sean Chaytor be elected Chairman of the Humberside Police 
and Crime Panel for the Municipal Year 2021-22. 
 
It was then – 
 
Moved by Councillor Nickerson and seconded by Councillor Hannigan as an 
amendment – 
 
That Councillor Bernard Gateshill be elected Chairman of the Humberside 
Police and Crime Panel for the Municipal Year 2021-22. 
 

Public Document Pack

Page 1

Agenda Item 5



HUMBERSIDE POLICE AND CRIME PANEL 
12 July 2021 

 

The votes having been cast and there being an equal number of votes for 
and against the amendment, the amendment therefore was not carried. 

 

The votes having been cast and there being an equal number of votes for 
and against the motion, the motion therefore was not carried. 

 
The Secretary to the Panel advised the meeting that following the members 
being unable to appoint a Chairman for the Municipal Year, it may be 
appropriate to appoint a Chairman for the meeting. 
 
It was then moved by Councillor Chaytor and seconded by Councillor 
Hannigan – 
 
That Mrs Whittaker be appointed Chairman for the meeting. 
 

Motion Carried 
 

382 APPOINTMENT OF VICE-CHAIR - Resolved – That consideration of this 
item be deferred to a future meeting. 
 

383 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE - Resolved – That it be noted that apologies 
for absence had been received from Councillor Haroldo Herrera-Richmond 
MA (Hull City Council). 
 

384 SUBSTITUTIONS - Resolved – That it be noted Councillor Matthews was 
substituting for Councillor Herrera-Richmond MA. 
 

385 DECLARATIONS OF DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY INTERESTS AND 
PERSONAL OR PERSONAL AND PREJUDICIAL INTERESTS (SUCH 
DECLARATIONS ARE TO BE MADE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE 
MEMBERS' RESPECTIVE COUNCIL'S CODE OF CONDUCT) - There were 
no declarations of disclosable pecuniary interests and personal or personal 
and prejudicial interests. 
 

386 TO TAKE THE MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE PANEL HELD ON 17 
MARCH 2021 AS A CORRECT RECORD AND AUTHORISE THE 
CHAIRMAN TO SIGN - Resolved - That the minutes of the meeting of the 
Police and Crime Panel held on 17 March 2021, having been printed and 
circulated amongst the members, be taken as read and correctly recorded, 
subject to the attendance being amended to reflect Mrs Chase having sent 
her apologies. 
 

387 PANEL MEMBERSHIP - BALANCED APPOINTMENT OBJECTIVE - The 
Secretary to the Police and Crime Panel circulated a report on the 
requirement to retain a balanced membership that reflected the political 
make-up of the Humberside Police force area – the Balanced Appointment 
Objective. 
 
Schedule 6 of the Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011 outlined 

Page 2



HUMBERSIDE POLICE AND CRIME PANEL 
12 July 2021 

 

the responsibilities councils had in establishing and maintaining a Police and 
Crime Panel. 
 
Where a force area consisted of 10 or fewer authorities, the minimum number 
of members of the Police and Crime Panel would be 10.  This does not 
include the two required independent co-opted members.  It was up to the 
Panel to agree the allocation of seats. 

 
The report provided a précis of the number of seats in the Humberside Force 
area, and identified how they could be allocated.  The allocation was at the 
discretion of the Panel. 
 
The Chairman invited members to discuss the Panel membership. 
 
Resolved – (a) That the Humberside Police and Crime Panel be represented 
by ten councillors, three seats each to East Riding of Yorkshire Council and 
Hull City Council, and two seats each to North Lincolnshire Council and North 
East Lincolnshire Council, and (b) that the Panel consist of six Conservative, 
three Labour and one Liberal Democrat councillors. 
 

388 HUMBERSIDE POLICE AND CRIME PANEL - PANEL ARRANGEMENTS - 
The Secretary to the Panel submitted its Panel Arrangements for 
consideration by members.  It was proposed that the arrangements be 
amended to include a paragraph on how the Panel would proceed if a 
member(s) do not attend meetings. 
 
The Chairman facilitated a discussion on the Panel Arrangements. 
 
Resolved – (a) That the amended Panel Arrangements be approved, subject 
to the inclusion of the wording “….period of six months or three meetings, 
which ever is longer ….”, and (b) that the amended Panel Arrangements be 
referred to the four local authorities and would only be implemented if they 
were approved by all the local authorities. 
 

389 HUMBERSIDE POLICE AND CRIME PANEL - SCHEDULE OF MEETINGS 
- Resolved - That dates and times of future meetings of the Panel be held on 
– 
 
Monday 12 July 2021, commencing at 9:30 am 
Monday 4 October 2021, commencing at 10:00 am 
Monday 29 November 2021, commencing at 1:30 pm 
Thursday 3 February 2022, commencing at 10:00 am 
Thursday 31 March 2022, commencing at 10:00 am 
 
All meetings would be held at the Ergo Connects Centre, Bridge Head 
Business Park, Hessle. 
 

390 HUMBERSIDE POLICE AND CRIME COMMISSIONER - The Chairman 
welcomed Jonathan Evison, the newly elected Police and Crime 
Commissioner to the meeting.  Mr Evison updated the Panel on the following 

Page 3



HUMBERSIDE POLICE AND CRIME PANEL 
12 July 2021 

 

– 
 
 His selection as the Conservative Party candidate and his surprise at 

being elected. 
 Thanks to the former Police and Crime Commissioner for the 

improvements made to Humberside Police. 
 Consultation on priorities to be included in the Police and Crime Plan. 
 Progress on drafting a new Police and Crime Plan. 
 Launch of ‘Not in My Community’. 
 Scams and fraud. 
 Proceeds of crime to be redistributed towards education. 
 Further collaboration with Local Authorities in bidding for monies. 
 Creation of a charity to assist in bidding for grants and monies. 
 
The Chairman then facilitated a discussion between the Panel Members and 
Mr Evison. 
 
Resolved – That the Police and Crime Commissioner be thanked for his 
attendance, presentation and for answering members questions. 
 

391 OFFICE OF THE POLICE AND CRIME COMMISSIONER PROGRESS 
REPORT - The Chairman welcomed Rachel Cook, the Chief Executive at the 
Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner to the meeting.  Miss Cook 
guided members through the following – 
 
 Police and Crime Commissioner Election. 
 Police and Crime Plan. 
 Police and Crime Commissioner holding Humberside Police to account. 
 Structural changes at the Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner. 
 Partnership working. 
 Collaboration. 
 Criminal Justice Board. 
 Special Constables. 
 Violence against women and girls. 
 Not in our Community. 
 Say no to fraud. 
 
Following the verbal presentation, the Chairman facilitated a discussion 
between Panel Members and the Chief Executive at the Office of the Police 
and Crime Commissioner. 
 
Resolved – (a) That the Chief Executive at the Office of the Police and Crime 
Commissioner be thanked for her attendance, verbal presentation and for 
answering members questions, b) that the Office of the Police and Crime 
Commissioner circulate an invitation to all Panel Members to attend an ‘open 
day’, and c) that Panel Members receive regular updates on the 
Accountability Board Activity Schedule. 
 

392 POLICE AND CRIME COMMISSIONER FINANCE SUMMARY - MAY 2021 - 
The Chairman invited the Police and Crime Commissioner and Chief Finance 

Page 4



HUMBERSIDE POLICE AND CRIME PANEL 
12 July 2021 

 

Officer at the Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner to update the 
Panel on the Force budget.  Mr Evison and Mr Wilson gave a comprehensive 
verbal presentation on the Force budget. 
 
Mr Evison made the Panel aware of an issue with the External Audit and the 
implications for the close of Humberside Police accounts. 
  
The Chairman then facilitated a discussion between the Panel Members and 
Mr Evison and Mr Wilson. 
  
Resolved – (a) That the Police and Crime Commissioner Finance Summary 
for May 2021 be received with thanks, and (b) that External Audit be included 
as an agenda item for the meeting on 4 October 2021. 
  
 

393 DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING - Monday 4 October 2021 
commencing at 10:00 am. 
 

394 ANY OTHER ITEMS THAT THE CHAIRMAN DECIDES ARE URGENT BY 
REASON OF SPECIAL CIRCUMSTANCES THAT MUST BE SPECIFIED - 
The Secretary to the Panel informed the meeting that further to Minute 378, 
and following the Panel being unable to elect a Chairman for the Municipal 
Year 2021-22, members may wish to consider a further extension to Mrs 
Whittaker’s term of office. 
 
Members discussed the Secretary’s proposal. 
 
Resolved – (a) That Mrs Whittaker’s terms of office as the Independent Co-
opted Member on the Panel be extended until 31 December 2021, and (b) 
that Mrs Whittaker be appointed Chairman of the Humberside Police and 
Crime Panel until 31 December 2021 or until a new Chairman was elected 
(which ever was sooner). 
 

 
 

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 6



POLICE AND 
CRIME PLAN
2021 - 2025

JONATHAN EVISON

 Safer  
Communities

Effective  
Organisations 

 Engaged, Resilient and 
Inclusive Communities3 3 3

P
age 7

A
genda Item

 6



2

CONTENTS

Foreword from Jonathan Evison  
Police and Crime Commissioner 3

Introduction 4

Where we are now 6

Vision, mission and values 8 

Aims  10

1.  Engaged, Resilient and Inclusive 
Communities 10

2. Safer Communities 12

3. Effective Organisations 14 

Roadmap 16

How this plan will be delivered 18

Resources 19

Commissioned Services 20

Grant Funding 20

Measuring progress and impact 21 

Governance and accountability 22

P
age 8



3

Welcome to my Police and Crime Plan.

When I was elected in May 2021 as your Police and Crime Commissioner, your local 
representative on policing and community safety, I pledged to engage more with the 
public and local communities – rural, coastal and urban.

I have a strong sense of purpose and desire to improve people’s lives and I want 
to be as effective as I can be in my role.  I want Humberside Police and our 
community safety stakeholders to have the tools required to be equally effective 
in how they deliver their services.  I also want the communities of East Yorkshire, 
Hull and Northern Lincolnshire to know that they have a fully committed advocate 
who represents their aspirations and who has their safety and wellbeing at heart.  

During my election campaign and upon taking office, I asked local people, 
communities and stakeholders for their views on community safety.  It is my 
strongly held desire that the Police and Crime Plan must belong to everyone.  
We must have maximum buy-in, because together we are stronger as 
communities and able to achieve more.  That’s why one of my main aims is to 
help partnerships, people and organisations to work together more effectively to 
deliver for our area.

This Plan was informed by the ideas and concerns put forward from across the 
area during public consultation.  It has a clear and tangible drive and direction, 
with specific objectives that will be straightforward to track progress on.  It 
contains several key things that we will do together, including:

  Progressing the resources available for tackling crime in rural, coastal and 
urban areas

  Increasing the number of police officers and improving their visibility

  Enhancing our crime reporting systems and the way we communicate, 
listening to our communities 

  Improving education and diversionary activities to stop more young people 
falling into crime

The roadmap included in this Plan highlights some important things that will be 
delivered by 2024, with further detail in the Annual Delivery Plans for my office.

To achieve this and much more, we will:

  Be ambitious and creative in attracting extra resources for our area, including 
from national grant funding and operating through a charity to secure funding 
from other bodies.

  Implement proven solutions and be bold in innovating to develop new ones.

  Be collaborative by working in partnership with community stakeholders.

  Share our progress and opportunities to be involved widely and encourage 
more people to engage with me and the organisations that serve our 
communities.

The Plan I have set will require a great deal of hard work and determination, but I 
am confident that together we can rise to the challenge and make great progress 
for our communities.

FOREWORD FROM JONATHAN EVISON  
POLICE AND CRIME COMMISSIONER

Jonathan Evison 
Police and Crime Commissioner 
for Humberside

P
age 9



4

THE POLICE AND CRIME COMMISSIONER
The Police and Crime Commissioner (PCC) is not the Police. The PCC is the voice 
of the public, elected to work on your behalf and hold the police to account, 
effectively making the police answerable to the communities they serve.

The PCC for the Humberside Police area is Jonathan Evison, elected in 2021 for 
a three-year term.  The PCC is supported by a non-political team of permanent 
staff, known as the Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner (OPCC), which 
implement the PCC’s priorities and support him to carry out his duties.

The main statutory responsibilities of the PCC are:

  Secure an efficient and effective police for their area.

  Appoint the Chief Constable, hold them to account for 
running the force, and if necessary dismiss them.

  Set the police and crime objectives for their area 
through a Police and Crime Plan.

  Set the force budget and determine the council tax precept.

  Obtain the views of local people and victims of crime before the 
Police and Crime Plan is issued and before the precept is set.

  Bring together community safety and criminal justice 
partners, to make sure local priorities are joined up.

  Commission services to help cut crime, improve community 
safety and provide support for victims of crime.

  Deal with complaints against the Chief Constable as the Appropriate Authority.

  Acts as the Relevant Review Body (depending on circumstances), 
reviewing complaint outcomes against the force for which 
the Chief Constable is the Appropriate Authority.

  Contribute to the national and international policing 
capabilities set out by the Home Secretary.

  Publish, in a prominent place, additional information under a 
Specified Information Order, including force performance against the 
Government’s published national policing priorities, HMICFRS (Her 
Majesty’s Inspectorate of Constabulary and Fire & Rescue Services) 
performance reports on the force, and complaint handling.

THE POLICE AND CRIME PLAN

The Police and Crime Plan is issued by the PCC for his term of office.  It 
sets the strategic police and crime objectives for the area, including the 
policing which the Chief Constable is to provide and the financial resources 
the PCC will make available.  Several other organisations – including local 
authorities, the Probation Service, Humberside Fire & Rescue Authority 
and Clinical Commissioning Groups – are also required to take account of 
these objectives in carrying out their work.

This Plan was developed after wide consultation with the public, their 
elected representatives and numerous organisations – including 
Humberside Police, local councils and other organisations with a statutory 
role in community safety; community and voluntary sector organisations; 
and representatives of the business community.  In developing the 
plan, the PCC has also taken into account other organisations’ plans, 
Government policy and the latest data about the local area.

INTRODUCTION

P
age 10



5

THE HUMBERSIDE POLICE FORCE AREA

1,250 932,800 30,245
square miles people businesses

4
unitary  
councils

230
town and  
parish councils

Over

A third of the population 
lives in rural towns 
and villages

Over a fifth of the area in 
the 10% most deprived 
places in England

The largest 
ports complex 
in the country

One of the UK’s 
main industrial 
clusters

P
age 11



6

WHERE WE ARE NOW

HUMBERSIDE POLICE
Humberside Police has made significant improvements in recent years and achieved a Silver Award for national “Police Service of the Year” in 2021 in the Public Sector 
Transformation Awards.  They have embraced innovation and positive cultural change.

But we can’t be complacent.  Demands on the police continually evolve, and there is still more to do to improve public confidence and work towards a force that is not just 
“good” but “outstanding”.

‘Good’ Inspection Gradings: the Force achieved ‘Good’ inspection gradings 
for the first time in history – the most improved Force in the country.

Nearly 600 extra police officers since 2017: there are now around 
2,100 police officers, which is nearly 600 more than in 2017.  Visibility is 
improving but the public tell us that only 4 in 10 are confident in being 
able to contact their local policing team.

High Workforce Morale: the Force has gone from worst to best in last 
three years in the Police Federation pay and morale survey.

Focus on Neighbourhood Policing: every area now has its own team, 
many in previously abandoned police stations. The public are able to 
check on the Humberside Police website who their local team is and 
how to contact them.

Crime Reporting: levels have fallen in the last 12 months and the 
nature of crime in changing – fraud and cybercrime are rising.  The 
public have told us around 4 in 10 victims don’t report crime, so we 
need to enhance our crime reporting systems.

Focus on Victims, Vulnerable People and Tackling Criminals: the 
force currently has the arrest highest rate in the country.  The public 
want to see visible local policing that can deter criminal activity and 
catch offenders.  We will work together to reduce high-harm offending 
and reoffending to protect the most vulnerable.

‘Best in class’ call handling: Emergency Response (999): the average 
wait time for Emergency Response (999) is only 9 seconds and the 
public tell us that almost 8 out of 10 have confidence in the 999 
response.  Over 8 out of 10 Non-Emergency (101) calls are answered 
in 30 seconds.  The public have told us that less than 6 out of 10 have 
confidence in the 101 response, so there is still a need to enhance the 
way we communicate these improvements.

Targeting ASB: there has been a reduction is ASB incidents in the last 
12 months, although rates are three-times higher in urban areas, and 
nuisance ASB (which includes street drinking) accounts for three-
quarters of recorded ASB.  Around half of the public have told us 
that crime and ASB has got worse in the last 5 years, so we need to 
progress the resources available for tackling crime and ASB in rural, 
coastal and urban areas.

Domestic Abuse: domestic abuse arrest rate is rising but levels of 
domestic abuse are still higher than many others.  We will develop 
a multi-agency public health approach to deal with domestic abuse 
causes and perpetrators.

Violent and Sexual Offences: the public want us to focus on violence 
against women and girls – violence and sexual offences account for 
around 2 in 5 recorded crimes.

The Government’s commitment to recruiting 20,000 additional police officers means that police numbers will increase further in the Humber area, and it is important that 
people feel the benefit of this.  Planned investment in digital technology will make it easier than ever to report crimes – so we need to ensure people are confident enough 
in the response to do so.  Closer working with partners and local communities will also help to solve problems as they emerge, improve the service victims of crime 
receive and make our area safer.

P
age 12



7

Source: ONS. Excludes fraud and cybercrime, which are recorded nationally

Recorded Crime Levels in 2020/21 - Humberside Police

Violence Against the Person

Theft Offences

Public Order Offences

Criminal Damage

Sexual Offences

Miscellaneous Crimes

Drug Offences

Robbery

Possession of Weapons Offences

39%

25%

14%

12%

3%

3%

2%

GOVERNMENT POLICY
Legislation and Government policy in relation to policing and community safety 
continues to evolve, and it is important that the PCC takes account of this.  Most 
recently this has included:

  The Government’s Beating Crime Plan (2021), which set out its priority focus 
on cutting homicide, serious violence, and neighbourhood crime; exposing 
and ending “hidden harms” like child sexual abuse, violence against women 
and girls and modern slavery; and building capability and capacity to deal with 
fraud and online crime.

  The Government’s Tackling Violence Against Women and Girls Strategy (2021) 
which sets out how they will prioritise prevention, support survivors, pursue 
perpetrators and create a stronger system.

  The Victims’ Code (2021), which brings together victims’ rights for information 
and support in the justice process.  Government plans to consult on a Victims’ 
Law to put these rights into legislation.

  The Domestic Abuse Act (2021), which seeks to improve the effectiveness of the 
justice system and strengthen support for victims.

  The Police, Crime, Sentencing and Courts Bill, which includes a range of 
proposed powers and duties.

The role of PCCs has expanded since they were introduced in 2011.  The 
Government is currently carrying out Part Two of a review into further 
strengthening their role, including offender management and partnership 
working, and will consult on fire governance later this year.  Any further changes 
are planned to be implemented before the 2024 PCC elections, meaning we will 
need to work on these during the lifetime of this Plan.

Local authorities in the Humber area are exploring the potential devolution of 
powers from central government.  Whilst this would not change the area covered 
by the PCC and Humberside Police, they and other agencies will need to consider 
how to work best with any new combined authorities that may be established.

An increase in recorded 
crime doesn’t necessarily 
mean more crimes are being 
committed – it can also mean 
the police have been successful 
in identifying crimes that 
may have gone unreported.  
In July 2021, a four-week 
intensification of Humberside 
Police’s proactive Operation 
Galaxy led to 256 arrests as 
well as £459,000 of drugs and 
a number of offensive weapons 
being recovered.

DID YOU KNOW?
PCCs are required to publish 
certain information to help  
the public hold them to 
account, including how the 
police are performing and  
how complaints are handled.   
You can find this on the  
PCC’s website -  
www.humberside-pcc.gov.uk.

DID YOU KNOW?

P
age 13



88

VISION, MISSION AND VALUES

VISION 
People are safe and have confidence in 
the organisations that work together 
to tackle crime.

PCC'S MISSION 
To be a committed advocate for people 
across the Humber area – driving 
continued improvement in policing  
and bringing organisations together  
to address crime and community 
safety issues.

VALUES 
The PCC and the OPCC share a set of 
five values that explain how we work 
together, with our partners and with 
our communities.  They are: Ambition, 
Brave, Compassion and Connecting 
grounded in deep levels of Trust.

P
age 14



9

Ambition  
“Challenging ourselves  
to innovate and think  

outside the box” 

We will be persistent and 
determined

We will maintain high  
ethical standards and act  

with integrity Brave  
“Asking questions when anyone’s actions  

are inconsistent with our values” 

We will say what we think, when it’s in 
the best interest of the public, even if it is 

uncomfortable
We will make tough decisions 

 (in a respectful way)
We will take risks and are  

open to possible failure

Compassion  
“Genuinely caring about others – having 

a genuine desire to help and support” 

We will not hesitate to go the  
extra mile for others

We will stop and consider what is  
going on for other people, and  

amend our approach accordingly

We will create a sense of  
connection with others

Connecting  
“Connecting the dots between people, 
processes and technology to deliver a 

real difference” 

We will connect, collaborate, 
cooperate, consider and contribute

 We will identify possibilities
We will bring people together  

to get things done ‘with’ people  
not ‘to’ them

Trust  
“Valuing relationships and 

building ones that last through 
what you do, and how you do it” 

We will always want the  
best for others

We will be comfortable in  
being uncomfortable/vulnerable 

with others
We will choose stories 

 that positively influence the 
culture and those in it

P
age 15



10

AIMS

This plan has three key aims:

1.  Engaged, Resilient and Inclusive 
Communities – our aim is to provide 
pathways for everyone to contribute 
to the safety of our communities

2.  Safer Communities – our aim is to 
focus activities on interventions that 
significantly impact on local crime levels

3.  Effective Organisations – our 
aim is to make the system work 
better for local communities

For each aim, priority outcomes have been identified – these 
describe what the PCC wants to focus on delivering during 
the life of this Plan.  The PCC encourages local partners to 
work towards these outcomes, and organisations applying 
for or receiving grant funding from the PCC will be required 
to show how their projects are aligned with them.

The PCC has also set specific objectives for each aim – things 
he intends to do to contribute to the outcomes.  Others may be 
added in future.  The Annual Delivery Plan published on the 
OPCC website will be the latest source of information.  Many 
other organisations will also be contributing to the outcomes, 
so these objectives are intended to complement their work.

Finally, the PCC has made several commitments 
about how he intends to work with local residents and 
organisations on these aims.  More information about how 
this Plan will be delivered can be found on page 18.

1.   Engaged, Resilient and 
Inclusive Communities

AIM
To provide pathways for everyone to contribute to the safety of our communities.

CONTEXT
The Humber area serves an increasingly diverse community.  Everyone should be able to 
engage positively with the organisations working for them, encouraging friendly relations 
between people from different groups and backgrounds, and being responsive to their 
diverse needs.  Organisations should be capable of delivering a high standard of service 
across the area, from city centre to coast and countryside.

Where communities have concerns, there should be clear routes for them to be raised.  
The Police and Crime Plan survey found that awareness of the Community Trigger for 
anti-social behaviour is low, but requests are rising in some areas and demand for 
services is high.  Agencies should also be able to analyse and share the growing amount of 
community intelligence they receive, and act on it together.

We want everyone to be safe and feel safe, but when a crime or incident occurs we want 
people to feel confident that they can report it and will be listened to.  When they do, 
they should be kept well informed about the progress of the investigation and offered 
the support and advice they are entitled to under the Victims’ Code.  Too many survey 
respondents said that communication had been insufficient or the help they had wanted 
had not been offered, suggesting there is more to do to improve services to victims.

Businesses should also be able to feel confident in reporting crimes that affect them 
and their workers, and be clear on the actions they can take to protect themselves and 
contribute to wider community safety.

The continually evolving nature of crime means that communities and organisations 
should be aware of growing threats like cybercrime and how to deal with them.

Strong and resilient communities are often the most proactive, looking out for one another 
and taking action to improve where they live.  Community spirit is one of the most valuable 
assets we have, but sometimes it needs a helping hand from organisations with the 
powers and resources to capitalise on great ideas.  The system must be able to get behind 
positive change, as well as being there for people if things go wrong.

P
age 16



11

OUTCOMES
This plan aims to deliver:

1.  Greater trust and confidence in urban, 
rural and coastal areas

2. Clear routes to raise concerns

3.  Effective and timely support for those 
impacted by crime and antisocial behaviour

4.  More people volunteering in community 
safety roles

5.  Organisations equipped to respond to 
evolving crime issues

6.  Place-based approaches that respond to 
community safety issues  

OBJECTIVES
The PCC will work with others to:

1.  Raise awareness of volunteering 
opportunities

2.  Ensure commissioned services and 
projects that we fund are of a high standard 
and we can report on their successes

3.  Raise awareness of and make it easier to 
report crime and ASB

4.  Reinforce adherence with the Victims’ Code 
through partner agencies

5.  Create a forum to understand and develop 
business crime solutions

6.  Raise awareness of emerging and growing 
crime threats

7.  Establish communication routes inclusive 
to all communities

PCC’S COMMITMENTS
In working towards these outcomes, I will:

1. Be the advocate for local people

2.  Hold Humberside Police to account for 
their performance through our governance 
and scrutiny work

3.  Ensure we develop a victims’ hub that 
hears the voice of the victim and others 
affected by crime and ASB

4.  Develop a Delivery Fund to support 
innovation, community resilience and 
reduce local crime

5.  Raise awareness of and make it easier to 
report crime and ASB

6.  Increase volunteering within my office to 
support our scrutiny role

7.  Develop our analytical capabilities to better 
understand rural, coastal, and urban 
community safety issues

P
age 17



12

AIM
To focus activities on interventions that significantly impact on local crime levels.

CONTEXT
Community safety is integral to people’s quality of life.  People want to live in places that feel 
safe, are cared for and where crime and antisocial behaviour do not go unchallenged.  The 
damaging impact that crime has on victims, local communities and offenders themselves, and 
the considerable cost to society as a whole, mean that it is in everyone’s interests to root it out.

Respondents to the Police and Crime Plan survey were clear about the need to tackle the kinds 
of persistent crime and antisocial behaviour – like drug use and dealing, burglary, fly-tipping, 
speeding, the misuse of motorbikes, and damage and graffiti – that can drag places down.  
They want to see visible local policing that can deter criminal activity and catch offenders, and a 
joined up response from agencies to deal with problems.

Not all crime is easy to see or report.  It is critical that we also act to reduce the sometimes 
hidden crimes that can affect the most vulnerable in our communities – like child grooming 
and exploitation, domestic abuse, violence against women and girls, modern slavery and hate 
crime.  This means raising awareness, working proactively to protect and safeguard vulnerable 
people, supporting victims, ensuring offenders are brought to justice and seeking to prevent 
reoffending.

Early intervention is key: stopping problems from escalating, and educating and supporting 
children and young people to prevent them from being drawn into criminal activity.  The 
Humber area has seen a continual reduction in young first-time entrants to the criminal justice 
system, but re-offending rates are higher than in similar places.  Recently the carrying of 
weapons and organised criminal activity (such as “county lines”) that have blighted some parts 
of the country have also started to rise here from a low level, while violence towards parents 
has also increased.

Agencies need to work together to address the factors that can lead to criminal behaviour, 
including drug and alcohol use, as well as the conditions that enable it – like unloved public 
spaces that feel unsafe to be in at night and a lack of positive activities for young people to 
take part in.  This includes supporting prison-leavers to integrate back into society and lead 
productive lives, rather than become trapped in a cycle of reoffending.

Proactive action to address these issues, alongside visible and responsive policing, can help to 
make our communities safer.

2.  Safer Communities

P
age 18



13

OUTCOMES
This plan aims to deliver:

1.  Education and support for young people, 
preventing them being impacted by crime

2.  Reduced harm through sustainable 
interventions aimed at domestic abuse 
perpetrators

3.  Reduced impact of drugs in our 
communities

4.  Reduced high-harm offending/reoffending 
by working together to protect the most 
vulnerable in society

5. Safer roads for all users

 

OBJECTIVES
The PCC will work with others to:

1.  Prevent crime through an evidence-
based approach to issues affecting our 
communities

2.  Ensure every young person benefits from 
access to resources that reduce their risk 
of being impacted by crime 

3.  Divert young people from crime by 
supporting access to positive activities

4.  Develop a multi-agency public health 
approach to deal with domestic abuse 
causes and perpetrators

5.  Raise awareness of and tackle ‘hidden 
harms’ with partners, e.g. child exploitation 
and modern slavery

6. Reduce the supply and demand of drugs

7.  Eliminate violence against women and girls 
through working together

8.  Improve the safety of public spaces by 
working with local authorities

9.  Commission services that reduce 
reoffending and raise community 
sentencing through working with the 
Probation Service and others

10.  Ensure safer roads for everyone through 
supporting Community Speed Watch and 
working in partnership with Safer Roads 
Humber

PCC’S COMMITMENTS
In working towards these outcomes, I will:

1.  Raise awareness of child exploitation, 
modern slavery, and drugs issues through 
NIOC (Not In Our Community)

2.  Invest in Youth Offending Services in each 
local authority area to divert young people 
from entering the Criminal Justice System

3.  Develop a multi-agency public health 
approach to domestic abuse

4.  Commission services that reduce 
reoffending and raise community 
sentencing

5.  Act as the public advocate to ensure road 
safety issues are directed towards Safer 
Roads Humber

6.  Publish performance information to 
provide the public with an understanding of 
our progress and achievements

A PUBLIC HEALTH APPROACH TO 
REDUCING VIOLENCE 
The public health approach uses evidence 
on the nature and underlying causes of a 
problem to target interventions to address 
it.  Public health interventions operate 
through modifying the risk factors that 
make an  individual, family or community 
vulnerable to violence (as victims, 
perpetrators, or both)  and by promoting 
protective factors.

P
age 19



14

AIM
To make the system work better for local communities.

CONTEXT
Responsibilities for dealing with crime, justice and community safety issues 
are distributed amongst numerous agencies.  Communities should be able to 
expect high-performing public services that work together, and collaboratively 
with voluntary and private sector organisations, to meet their needs.  Joint 
leadership structures like the Local Criminal Justice Board and Community Safety 
Partnerships (see page 18) should help to drive this.

Because crime does not stop at police force boundaries and some threats are 
national, Humberside Police needs to be able to make a wider contribution to the 
national Strategic Policing Requirement.  Where appropriate, collaboration with 
other police forces and emergency services can also deepen specialist expertise, 
provide resilience and increase efficiency – so long as this is not at the expense of 
local policing.

Collaboration, flexibility and joint planning amongst emergency services, local 
authorities and other partners also underpins the Humber’s resilience to major 
incidents that affect communities, like the Covid-19 pandemic and flooding.  

To be effective, organisations that support community safety should be creative 
and ambitious in seeking extra resources for our area. They should be careful 
in how they use them, willing to learn from one another and consider what has 
worked elsewhere.  They should know what is happening on the ground through 
community engagement and intelligence, and share this with partners.  By default 
they should consider how their investment can achieve best value for taxpayers 
for the long term, including the wider value it can bring to communities and the 
environment.

Effective organisations need to be able to attract and retain skilled and motivated 
people, representative of their communities.  They should be “employers of 
choice” – organisations that people want to work for, that invest in and support 
their staff and help to nurture local talent.

3. Effective Organisations

P
age 20



15

OUTCOMES
This plan aims to deliver:

1. Better partnership working

2.  More funding and resources for the 
Humber region

3. More social value from your money

4. Innovative approaches to community safety

5.  Shift to Net Zero carbon emissions for  
our area

6.  Collaboration with other organisations only 
where it demonstrates improved service to 
the public

7.  Workplaces that are diverse, inclusive and 
seen as 'Employer of Choice'

OBJECTIVES
The PCC will work with others to:

1.  Increase police officer numbers through 
the national uplift programme

2.  Support and bring together local 
organisations to tackle local issues

3.  Improve the Criminal Justice System by 
bringing organisations together

4.  Secure more funding from Government 
and others by being ambitious and 
collaborating with local organisations

5.  Use grant funding and partnership working 
to increase the uptake of innovative 
technologies

6.  Improve the local environment by exploring 
unpaid work opportunities for offenders

7.  Ensure all our funding and commissioning 
decisions focus on sustainability, 
environmental impact, and social value

8.  Explore opportunities for joined-up 
commissioning of services

PCC’S COMMITMENTS
In working towards these outcomes, I will:

1.  Increase and sustain police officer 
numbers ensuring a diverse and inclusive 
workforce

2.  Provide funding to Community Safety 
Partnerships to help them respond to  
local needs

3.  Chair the Local Criminal Justice Board and 
drive shared improvements

4.  Invest in modern IT and buildings to meet 
future needs within Humberside Police

5.  Ensure we collaborate with other 
police forces where it meets statutory 
requirements including the Strategic 
Policing Requirement

6. Achieve ‘Employer of Choice’ for the OPCC

7.  Secure more funding and resources for 
community safety in the Humber region

P
age 21



16

PCCs are required to issue their Police 
and Crime Plans as soon as practicable 
after taking office and, in any case, 
before the end of the financial year  
(31 March) in which the PCC is elected.

Because the PCC elections were delayed 
from 2020 to 2021, this Plan covers 
three years rather than the usual four.  
The next Police and Crime Plan for the 
Humberside area will be published after 
the elections scheduled for May 2024.  
This Plan will remain in force until then.

Below you can see at a glance some of 
the key actions planned for each year 
of this Plan, and the preparations that 
are being made for future years.  More 
details will be published in Annual 
Delivery Plans on the PCC’s website.

ROADMAP

  Delivery Fund launched to support innovation, community 
resilience and reduce local crime

  New partnership established to improve crime education 
for young people

  Clear performance data published to see how the police 
force are doing

   Increased visibility of the Police and Crime Commissioner
  New funding structure implemented for CSPs
  Multi-agency public health approach to domestic abuse
   Roll-out of campaigns to raise awareness of crime and 

safety issues

ANNUAL INCREASE  
IN POLICE OFFICER  

NUMBERS

2021- 
2022

P
age 22



17

  New victims’ hub that hears the voice of 
the victim and others affected by crime 
and ASB

   Volunteering opportunities expanded and 
easier to access

  New business crime forum established
  Roll-out of campaigns to raise awareness 

of crime and safety issues

  New Smart Contact product operational 
which will make it easier to report crime 
and ASB

   Analytical capabilities which allow us 
to publish rural, coastal, and urban 
community safety issues for the public

  Opening of Melton 2 police building
  New Niche Crime System in Humberside 

Police

  Recommission victim support services under a new 
model that will improve the support available to victims 
of crime to help them cope and recover

   New commissioned service for victims of sexual assault
  Development of new South Bank station

NEXT PCC  
ELECTION  

(MAY 2024)

£4M ADDITIONAL EXTRA 
INVESTMENT SECURED 
AND DELIVERED IN THE 

HUMBER REGION

ANNUAL INVESTMENT IN YOUTH 
OFFENDING SERVICES IN EACH 

LOCAL AUTHORITY AREA TO DIVERT 
YOUNG PEOPLE FROM ENTERING 
THE CRIMINAL JUSTICE SYSTEM

2022- 
2023

2023- 
2024

P
age 23



18

IN EACH LOCAL AUTHORITY AREA:

Community Safety Partnerships – statutory 
partnerships of local authorities, police, fire and 
rescue, probation and Clinical Commissioning 
Groups responsible for local strategies to reduce 
crime and antisocial behaviour, the misuse of drugs 
and reoffending. 

 Place Boards – focussing on the wider community 
impact. 

Youth Offending Service boards.

AT THE HUMBERSIDE FORCE AREA:

Humberside Criminal Justice Board – chaired by 
the PCC and facilitated by his office, this brings 
together the criminal justice system (including 
the Police, Courts, Crown Prosecution, Prisons, 
Probation and Youth Offending) at the local level. 

 Safer Roads Humber – a non-statutory body that 
seeks to reduce road casualties in the Humber area. 

 Humber Modern Slavery Partnership – a strategic 
partnership of front line organisations dedicated to 
identifying and tackling all forms of modern slavery 
and exploitation, facilitated by a Modern Slavery 
Coordinator post funded by the PCC.

ACROSS YORKSHIRE AND THE HUMBER:

Yorkshire and the Humber Rehabilitation 
Partnership – a partnership of PCCs, the Probation 
Service, prisons, public health and the Department 
for Work and Pensions, focussed on reducing 
reoffending.

HOW THIS PLAN WILL BE DELIVERED

The PCC is the voice of the public and sets the objectives for policing and crime in the area, but many organisations – and all local residents – also have parts to play in 
making our communities safer.  This Plan will be most successful where organisations and individuals work together.

The PCC is committed to improving community engagement and developing stronger and more effective partnerships.  He intends to work in a collaborative way, but he 
also has a specific responsibility to hold Humberside Police to account for their performance.  

KEY PARTNERSHIPS

The PCC and the OPCC are formally involved or represented at several key partnerships:

The OPCC is also a member of several organisations to help support the PCC’s activities.  Nationally, this includes the Association of Police and Crime Commissioners, 
Association of Policing and Crime Chief Executives and National Anti-Trafficking and Modern Slavery Network.  Locally, the OPCC is a member of Marketing Humber and 
Hull & Humber Chamber of Commerce.  Further details are available on the PCC’s website.

P
age 24



The PCC’s budget
In 2021/22 the PCC’s budget is £212.8m, with around two thirds of this coming 
from central government grants.  Most of the rest is raised locally through the 
Council Tax Precept, set each year by the PCC, with the remainder drawn down 
from previously-accumulated reserves.

£200.9m (94%) of the PCC’s budget is provided to the Chief Constable to fund 
Humberside Police.  £4.1m is used by the PCC to commission services for victims 
or provide funding to other organisations and partnerships with a role in crime 
and community safety.  Less than 1% is used to fund the Office of the Police and 
Crime Commissioner (OPCC), which manages these activities, secures additional 
funding and supports the PCC to deliver the Police and Crime Plan and his 
statutory duties.

The PCC’s annual budget is underpinned by a Medium-Term Resource Strategy 
for 2021/22-2025/26 which describes the financial direction of the organisation 
and is reviewed annually. Details of this are available on our website.

The resources available to the PCC are heavily influenced by Government 
decisions.  The Government is due to publish a Spending Review in October 2021 
that will set the direction of public finances for the coming years, and the PCC will 
need to respond as appropriate.

External funding
The core resources provided to the PCC are bolstered by funding from other 
sources, particularly bidding to central Government for extra investment to 
deliver specific projects and services.  The OPCC will work closely with local 
authorities and the voluntary and community sector to secure additional funding 
for the area, and the PCC will encourage organisations to work collaboratively for 
the best chances of success.  The PCC also aims to diversify sources of funding 
that support community safety, including charitable donations and acting more 
commercially where appropriate.

This Plan sets a target of securing £4m of extra investment over the term of the 
PCC on top of the core budget to support policing and address the issues affecting 
communities.

Effective investment
The PCC wants to see taxpayers’ funds invested wisely.  This means making well-
informed decisions based on evidence, monitoring investments to make sure they 
are delivered according to plan, and evaluating what works – aiming to continue 
activities that are effective and stopping any that aren’t.

At times this will also mean taking calculated risks – whether testing a new 
technology or trialling a different approach – to ensure our area can benefit from 
the latest in modern policing and community safety.

Effective investment also means delivering maximum value and considering 
the wider social impact that can be achieved.  For example, this could mean 
encouraging suppliers to create apprenticeships and employ local people and ex-
offenders where appropriate, and work with the PCC to raise awareness of issues 
like domestic abuse and modern slavery amongst their staff and their customers.

RESOURCES

  £m
Chief Constable 200.9
PCC 0.1
OPCC 1.7
Commissioned services and partnerships 4.1
Capital financing (e.g. police buildings) 6.0
Net Expenditure 212.8
 
Central Government Grants 130.9
Council Tax Precept Support Grant 10.0
Council Tax Precept 66.5
Council Tax Precept surplus/(deficit) (0.2)
Central Grant and Precept Total 207.2
Appropriations (to)/from reserves 5.6

2021/22 Budget

19

P
age 25



20

The PCC will commission the following services during this Plan:

Victim Referral and Liaison services: Flexible support for all victims across a 
broad range of crimes, ensuring service users are informed of their rights and 
kept up to date with case progress. 

Restorative Justice: Brings those harmed by crime or conflict and those 
responsible for the harm into communication, enabling all affected by an incident 
to play a part in repairing the harm and finding a positive way forward.

Independent Domestic Violence Advisors:  Hosted in the Police control room, 
this service provides advice to victims close to their initial contact.  It offers early 
identification, assessment and immediate referral into support services.

Independent Sexual Violence Advisors:  Specialist support for victims of sexual 
assault throughout the criminal justice process, including advice on procedures, 
liaison with the police and CPS on behalf of the victim, attending trials and 
ensuring ongoing safety.

Child Sexual Assault Assessment Service: Medical and forensic assessment 
for sexual abuse at the request of Humberside Police and Local Authorities’ 
Children’s Services, supported by registered nursing staff with paediatric 
experience.  Jointly funded by NHS England.

Who’s in Charge: An Adolescent to Parent Violence programme for the South 
Bank of the Humber; a programme aimed at parents whose children are being 
abusive or violent toward them or who appear out of parental control.  The 
programme seeks to change unwanted behaviour in both young people and 
adults.  Equivalent provision is available on the North Bank.

Humberside Young Witness Service: Achieving Best Evidence: A police-run 
service that provides support and advice for child/young witnesses who may be 
required to testify in criminal proceedings.

The PCC will provide grant funding to Community Safety Partnerships, 
Safeguarding Adults Boards, Safeguarding Children Partnerships, and Youth 
Offending Services.  This will be restructured from 1 April 2022 to reduce 
inefficiencies in the previous system, improve effectiveness and encourage more 
collaboration.  Funding will cover core partnership facilitation and activity over a 
three-year period, and will be set following a business case process in autumn 
2021.

The PCC will also establish a new Delivery Fund to support organisations across 
the area to address community safety issues.  This will be launched shortly.

Full details of grant funding provided by the PCC and projects supported will be 
published on the PCC’s website.

COMMISSIONED SERVICES GRANT FUNDING

P
age 26



21

MEASURING PROGRESS AND IMPACT

The aims and outcomes set out in this Plan will be supported by clear measures, 
which will be published on a regular basis so people can see for themselves whether 
progress is being made.  The OPCC will work with partners to gather the data for these 
measures, and carry out engagement and consultation exercises with local residents 
and organisations to understand their views.  These locally-defined measures will 
complement the National Crime and Policing Measures set by the Home Secretary, 
which the PCC will also report on to the public.

The objectives the PCC has set to contribute to these aims and outcomes will be reported 
on through the PCC’s Annual Report, with a simple traffic light rating to show whether or 
not we are on track.  Any additional objectives will be added to the Annual Delivery Plan 
for the OPCC and reported on in the same way.

The OPCC will also work with local and national partners to contribute to collective 
understanding of “what works” in policing and community safety, so we can learn from 
one another and good practice elsewhere.  We recognise the diverse geography of the 
Humber area and specifically what works for urban, rural and coastal communities. 
Larger projects will be formally evaluated where possible so learnings are captured, and 
the OPCC will continue to work with experts in academia (particularly the University of 
Hull) and non-profit organisations to draw on their knowledge. 

P
age 27



22

HOLDING THE CHIEF CONSTABLE TO ACCOUNT

The Chief Constable is responsible for operational policing matters, direction 
and control of police personnel, and for putting in place proper arrangements 
for governance of the force.  The PCC is required to hold him to account for the 
exercise of those functions and those of persons under his direction and control.  
The relationship between the PCC, Chief Constable, Police and Crime Panel and 
Home Secretary is guided by the Policing Protocol Order 2011.

The PCC and Chief Constable have separate but complementary governance 
structures to monitor and assess performance, set out in a Joint Scheme of 
Corporate Governance.  A formal Accountability Board ensures proper governance 
of Humberside Police and the PCC through open, constructive debate of their 
respective statutory duties and the efficiency and effectiveness of the force.

The PCC will hold the Chief Constable to account through a published annual 
Strategic Delivery Plan provided by the Force and focused on delivery against the 
Police and Crime Plan.

Further assurance arrangements include:

  Daily informal interaction between the PCC, OPCC and Humberside Police

  Joint PCC/Chief Constable weekly briefings

  Joint Chief Executive/Deputy Chief Constable monthly briefings

  Assurance conversations every month/quarter with Chief and Senior Officers

  Bespoke briefings, attendance at key meetings and meetings with other 
public bodies

  Internal audit plans and oversight of Force inspections

SCRUTINY

To ensure the PCC can hold the Chief Constable to account effectively, key issues 
and activities are scrutinised through either a community-led approach or an 
independent approach from specialist agencies.  These include:

  Use of Police Powers: local volunteers scrutinise police use of powers 
(including Use of Force and Stop & Search) through group discussions and 
interpretation of police records, statistics and site visits, and consider how 
these impact on our communities.

  Hate Crime: local volunteers scrutinise common themes and trends in the 
statistics and decision-making process and how these impact on diverse and 
vulnerable communities.

  Custody Visiting: local volunteers make unannounced visits to the two 
custody suites to check and report on the welfare of people being held there.

  Domestic Abuse: working with other organisations to review and improve the 
investigation of domestic abuse and supporting/safeguarding of victims.  This 
scrutiny is undertaken by various organisations involved in the provision of 
domestic abuse services.

An independently-chaired Ethics and Scrutiny Board supports the PCC in 
exploring ethical issues and matters raised through scrutiny.  This generates 
organisational learning, informs policy and priorities, challenges where 
appropriate and encourages openness and transparency.

A Joint Independent Audit Committee meets quarterly to provide independent 
advice and recommendations to the PCC and Chief Constable on governance and 
risk, internal controls, financial reporting and audit.

GOVERNANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY

P
age 28



23

POLICE AND CRIME PANEL

The Police and Crime Panel exists to scrutinise the PCC’s activities, and has a 
formal role in reviewing the Police and Crime Plan and annual report.  The Panel 
can also veto decisions on the local Council Tax precept and the appointment of a 
new Chief Constable.  The Panel do not hold the police to account, as that is the role 
of the PCC.

The four Humber local authorities are responsible for establishing and maintaining 
the Panel, which is made up of councillors from each area and a number of 
independent members.  North Lincolnshire Council is the lead authority and 
publishes Panel information on its website.

POLICE COMPLAINTS

The PCC has a statutory duty to review the handling and outcome of formally 
recorded complaints, ensuring that outcomes are reasonable and proportionate.  
Reviews are undertaken by an independent Review Officer to ensure impartiality 
and transparency.

The PCC holds the Chief Constable to account for ensuring that the Force is able to 
deal with complaints effectively and efficiently, and has a duty to monitor complaint 
investigations which exceed 12 months.

The PCC is the Appropriate Authority to address complaints about the Chief 
Constable, in circumstances where the Chief Constable’s own personal actions have 
had an adverse effect on the complainant.  

The OPCC has a duty to appoint independent panel members and legally qualified 
chairs to support and ensure impartiality of Force Misconduct Hearings, and to 
that end we have recruited and provided training to a ‘bank’ of local Independent 
Members.    Where an officer is dismissed and a panel decision is appealed, 
applications to Police Appeals Tribunals are managed by the OPCC. 

TRANSPARENCY

The PCC and OPCC are committed to operating transparently in all that we do.  As a 
public sector body, we are subject to the Freedom of Information Act and required 
to publish various information such as our policies, decisions and expenditure.  We 
have a proactive publication scheme setting out what we will publish and a clear 
mechanism for the public to request additional information.

PCCs are also required to publish some specific information under the Elected 
Local Policing Bodies (Specified Information) Order 2011 (as amended).  From 2021 
this also includes publishing and/or signposting the following in “a prominent 
place” on our website on publication of the Police and Crime Plan:

 Performance against the Government’s national priorities for policing.

  Her Majesty’s Inspectorate of Constabulary and Fire & Rescue Services 
(HMICFRS) most recent PEEL (Police Effectiveness, Efficiency and Legitimacy) 
performance report.

  Independent Office for Police Conduct (IOPC) data and PCC narrative report 
within one month of publication by the IOPC.

All documents and further information are available in the dedicated transparency 
area of our website.

P
age 29



www.humberside-pcc.gov.uk

JONATHAN EVISON

@HumbersidePCC

Humberside-Police-and-
Crime-Commissioner

Follow our progress:

www.mycommunityalert.co.uk

P
age 30



HUMBERSIDE POLICE AND CRIME PANEL 
 

DATE      04 October 2021 
 
REPORT OF Chief Executive 
 
SUBJECT Project and Funding Report  
 
STATUS     Open 
 
 

1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
The purpose of this report is to provide the Police and Crime Panel with an update on 
the work of the OPCC specifically surrounding efforts on securing additional resources 
for the area.  

 
 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
It is recommended that Members of the Police and Crime Panel use this report as 
background information to support oversight of the work of the PCC.  
 
 

3. SUMMARY 
 
Humberside OPCC have been successful in securing several funding applications, 
submitted into the Home Office (HO) and to the Ministry of Justice (MoJ).  
 
The bids were in relation to additional funding needs for Domestic Abuse and Sexual 
Violence services, to meet increasing demand across Humberside. 
 
Additional bids into the Home Office were also successful in relation to Community 
Safety in the West Marsh (North East Lincolnshire). An environmental design project 
called Safer Streets, to design out crime and meet priorities for the community and a 
hot spot policing bid to increase police resources in high crime areas.  
 
In total the successful bids have generated £1.6m worth of additional investment 
within Humberside from the start of the PCC term of office.  
 
There are 2 further applications which await approval for Safer Streets projects in the 
area of St Andrews, University and city centre in Hull which aim to tackle serious 
acquisitive crime, violence against women and girls and safety of women in the night 
time economy.  
 
 

4. PROJECT SUMMARIES 
 
4.1 Increased Independent Domestic Violence Advocate (IDVA) workforce across 

Humberside (£202,486) 
 
Increased workforce capacity in all 4 local authority areas to cope with the 
increased demand and concern for harm in relation to domestic abuse.  

Page 31

Agenda Item 7



 
4.2 Increased Independent Sexual Violence Advocate (ISVA) workforce across 

Humberside  (£105,000) 
 
Increased advocacy and support for victims and survivors of sexual violence 
(SV). For survivors who want support to navigate the criminal justice system, 
have an advocate to support them throughout all stages of their journey. 
 

4.3 Emergency funding for third sector providers in Sexual Violence and Domestic 
Abuse sector (£250,864) 
 
Emergency funding to: 
 

 Support organisations to meet accommodation costs,  

 Address significant waiting lists for sexual violence and domestic abuse 
counselling and therapeutic support.  

 Provides emergency packs for young victims 

 DA and SV campaign(s) to increase resilience and awareness, in 
association with Hull University.  

 
4.4 Child Adolescent Parental Violence (CAPV) programme Humberside 

(£200,000) 
 
Training and resources to Social Care and Early Help services and family 
based practitioners in CAPV. It will complement and enhance existing 
provision, enabling a wider pool of practitioners equipped to deliver to this 
agenda in a sustainable and coordinated model (which is emerging as a 
demand area). This also builds on the existing service provision for ‘Who’s in 
Charge?’ – A South bank commissioned CAPV service. 
 

4.5 Male Rape support fund Humberside (£56,000) 
 
Support for our partner agency The Blue Door to deliver a peer led recovery 
model for male victims of rape and sexual violence, supporting and counselling 
those affected by these crimes 
 

4.6 Science, Technology, Analysis & Research (STAR) partnership project 
(£126,500) 
 
Joint partnership feasibility study with the Criminology team at the University 
of Hull, Police and OPCC – trial featuring provision of audio alarms to high risk 
DA victims to act as a deterrent to perpetrators and with the ability to capture 
audio to aid evidence based prosecutions. 
 

4.7 Safer Streets 2, West Marsh North East Lincolnshire (£432,000) 
 
Joint project with North East Lincolnshire Local Authority. Funding supports 
local initiatives designed to prevent and reduce neighbourhood crime and 
improve the environment: Burglary, Robbery, Vehicle Crime and Theft from 
the Person. 
 
 
 

Page 32



 
4.8 Hot spot Policing across hot spots in Humberside (£390,000) 

 
The funding will enhance Humberside Police’s operational policing response 
to serious violence in public spaces by identifying micro-areas experiencing or 
at risk of serious violence, and conducting high-visibility patrols in such areas 
to tackle and suppress serious violence. Officers will be regularly cycled 
through serious violence hotspots using uniformed foot patrols of 15-20 minute 
duration, with guidance to engage with the public and businesses to ensure 
their presence is visible. 

 
 

5. NEXT STEPS 
 
The Contracts and Commissioning Team will be focussed on further pipeline for 
opportunities as well as resourcing the oversight and contract management for those 
opportunities that result in commissioned service providers.  
 
The Head of Policy and Partnerships is monitoring resource requirements of the 
OPCC to ensure that as more income is generated that we can ensure quality of 
service can be maintained whilst ensuring capacity for new income generation is 
maximised.   
 

 
 

Rachel Cook, Chief Executive & Monitoring Officer 
Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner for Humberside 

Page 33



This page is intentionally left blank



HUMBERSIDE POLICE AND CRIME PANEL 
 

DATE      4 October 2021 
 
REPORT OF Chief Finance Officer, Office of the Police and 

Crime Commissioner (OPCC) 
 
SUBJECT Annual Accounts Audit 2020/21 
 
STATUS     Open 
 
 
1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to provide the Police and Crime Panel with an 

update on the latest position in relation to the Annual Accounts Audit for 
2020/21. 

 
 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
2.1 It is recommended that Members of the Police and Crime Panel use this 

report as background information to support in oversight of the work of the 
PCC.  

 
 

3. ANNUAL ACCOUNTS AUDIT 2020/21 
 
3.1 The statutory timetable for the 2020/21 Accounts is for the Chief Finance 

Officer to sign the Accounts by 31 July 2021 (this was completed on 19 July 
2021) and for the audit to be completed by 30 September 2021.  

 
3.2 The statutory notice for the public inspection of the Accounts was advertised 

and the inspection period ran for 30 working days from 20 July 2021. 
 
3.3 In the wider local government audit market there are currently a number of 

significant factors at a national level as follows:- 
 

 a significant backlog of delayed 2019/20 audit opinions which are still 
outstanding; 

 a shortage of audit staff with the requisite skills and experience, further 
exacerbated by high attrition rates; 

 more demanding regulatory requirements which increase the time and 
resources needed to complete each audit; 

 local bodies entering more frequently into innovative transactions which 
require detailed examination by auditors; and 

 the challenges posed by the pandemic, including its implications for 
auditors’ risk assessment and their work in relation to the financial 
resilience of bodies. 

 

Page 35

Agenda Item 8



3.4 The external auditors responsible for the Humberside Police audit are 
Mazars.  They have experienced some of the issues reported in the list above 
which has impacted their ability to deliver an audit opinion by 30 September 
2021.  Mazars have prioritised their resourcing to enable the audit to start on 
13 September 2021.  This will likely allow an audit opinion and completion by 
approximately mid-November 2021. 

 
3.5 This situation has been closely monitored by the PCC’s CFO and the CC’s 

CFO.  This has resulted in a formal request for an explanation from Mazars 
and also a meeting with Public Sector Audit Appointments (PSAA) (who have 
responsibility for the appointment of auditors for local government) which 
included the PCC for Humberside to raise our concerns at the highest level. 

 
3.6 Ultimately, the picture is one of market failure at a national level which PSAA 

are hoping to address as part of the tendering arrangements for the next 
appointments from 1 April 2023. 

 
 

4. NEXT STEPS 
 
4.1 The next steps in the process are as follows:- 
 

 13 September – commencement of the audit by Mazars; 

 Late-October – completion of the audit by Mazars; 

 1 November – Joint Independent Audit Committee (JIAC) receive the 
auditor’s opinion and the final set of Accounts 2020/21; 

 Mid-November – audit opinion and published audited Accounts for 
2020/21; 

 Late-November – public notice published to close the audit for 2020/21. 
 

 
Kevin Wilson 

Chief Finance Officer 
Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner for Humberside 

Page 36



PCC Group Finance Summary – Period Ending July 2021 

 

 

1.0 PCC Group Revenue Summary 

  
 

Table 1 - 2021/22 Group Revenue Monitoring  
 

 Approved  

Budget  

2021/22 

Projected  

Outturn  

2021/22 

Variance 
2021/22 

Group Position £m £m £m 

Chief Constable 200.906 200.188 (0.718) 

Police and Crime Commissioner 5.903 5.872 (0.031) 

Capital Financing 

Net Expenditure 

5.973 5.967 (0.006) 

212.782 212.027 (0.755) 

Central Government Grants 130.918 130.918 - 

Council Tax Precept Support Grant 10.041 10.041 - 

Council Tax Precept 66.477 66.477 - 

Council Tax Precept surplus/(deficit) 

Central Grant and Precept Total 

(0.222) (0.222) - 

207.214 207.214 - 

Appropriations (to) / from reserves 5.568 4.813 - 

  

 

1.1 The Chief Constable’s forecast outturn is projected to be £718k 

underspent, due to the following main variances: 

 

 Underspends: Police Staff pay £500k, Information Services £528k, 

Financial investigation income is £150k higher than anticipated and 

Overspends: Forensic submissions £150k. 

 

1.2 The Police and Crime Commissioner’s budget is projected to underspend 

by £31k due to lower amount of travel, training and ICT costs than 

expected. 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 37

Agenda Item 9



2.0 Group Reserves Position    
  

Table 2 - 2021/22 Reserves  
 

 Approved 

2021/22 

Projected 

2021/22 

Variance 

2021/22 

Group Position £m £m £m 

Opening Balance – General Reserve (01/04/21) 6.120 6.120 - 

Predicted (over)/under spend (from table 1) - - - 

Planned transfer to/(from) General Reserve 0.300 0.300 - 

General Reserve Forecast Closing Balance 

(31/03/22) 

6.420 6.420 - 

Earmarked Reserves     

Performance Improvement Reserve – Opening 

Balance (01/04/21) 

  10.834  10.834 - 

Planned transfer to/(from) PIR    (3.558) (2.788) 0.770 

PIR Forecast Closing Balance (31/03/22)   7.276   7.261 0.770 

Risk Management Reserve – Opening Balance 

(01/04/21) 

  2.125   2.125 - 

Planned transfer to/(from)RMR (1.000) (1.000) - 

RMR Forecast Closing Balance (31/03/22)   1.200   1.200 - 

Partnership Reserve – Opening Balance (01/04/21)   1.274   1.274 - 

Planned transfer to/(from) Partnership Reserve (1.009) (1.009) - 

Partnership Reserve Forecast Closing Balance 

(31/03/22) 

  0.260   0.260 - 

    

Total Reserve Forecast Opening Balance (01/04/21) 20.353 20.353 - 

Planned transfer to/(from) Reserves (5.267) (4.497) 0.770 

Total Reserves Forecast Closing Balance (31/03/22) 15.086 15.856 0.770 

 

2.1  Use of reserves made up of: 

 

 £3,397k the original proposed use of reserves from as per the MTRS; 

 £300k contribution to the General Reserves from Table 2 above as per 

the MTRS; 

 £1,185k approved year-end carry forwards; 

 £985k rolling forward of a COVID-19 grant that was received late in 

2021/22; 

 £5,267k total movement on reserves in Table 2 above. 

 Use of reserves is expected to be £770k less than originally planned 

due to the underspend of £755k from Table 1 above and £15k that is 

no longer required from the PIR. 

Page 38



3.0 Capital Summary  
 

 

Table 3 - Capital Estimates 

2021/22 

Approved 

Budget 

£m 

2021/22 

Predicted 

Spend  

£m 

2021/22 

Variance 

£m 

Major and Minor Building Schemes 18.844 16.792 (2.052) 

Information Technology 6.639 6.360 (0.279) 

Vehicles and Equipment 4.178 4.178 (0.124) 

Total    29.588     27.206 (2.455) 

  

 

4.0 Savings Target Summary  
 

 

Table 4 – Savings 

2021/22 

Approved 

Target 

£m 

Original Target (01/04/21) 0.750 

Achieved Savings 0.722 

Remaining Target (by 31/03/22) 0.022 

 

 

5.0 Use of COVID-19 Grant Summary  
 

Table 5 – COVID-19 Grant 

2021/22 

 

£m 

Grant Amount 1.052 

COVID-19 - spend to Date (0.147) 

Remaining Grant (to be used by 31/03/22) 0.905 

  

 

6.0 Summary 

  

The main risk to the budget remains the unknown consequences of the 

ending of COVID-19 restrictions on the level of demand for policing 

resources.  The budget includes sums available for the Force to meet 

unforeseen pressures and these, in addition to the uncommitted COVID-

19 grant, provide mitigation against budget risks.  

Page 39



This page is intentionally left blank



Report of the Secretary to the    Meeting:     4 October 2021 
Humberside Police and Crime Panel    

 
 
 
 

RE-APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDNET MEMBER TO THE 
HUMBERSIDE POLICE AND CRIME PANEL 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2. BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 

2.1 The Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011 (“the Act”) requires 
that two independent co-opted members are appointed to the Humberside 
Police and Crime Panel.  The term of appointment for independent 
members is four years.  At the end of that term of office the Panel may 
appoint new independent members or re-appoint existing independent 
members for a further period. 

 
2.2 The independent co-opted members must not be members of local 

authorities covered by the Humberside Police area.  In co-opting an 
independent member, the Act requires that the Panel must secure that (as 
far as is reasonably practicable), the appointed and co-opted members of 
the Panel, when taken together, have the skills, knowledge and 
experience necessary for the Panel to discharge its functions effectively.  
Unless the Panel are re-appointing an existing independent member, a 
recruitment process to select a new independent member must be carried 
out. 

 
2.3 Mrs Whittaker was appointed by the Panel at its meeting on 27 June 2016.  

This followed a recruitment process which attracted 5 applicants, all of 
which were interviewed by a cross-party selection panel.   

 

HUMBERSIDE POLICE AND CRIME PANEL 

 
1. OBJECT AND KEY POINTS IN THIS REPORT 
 

1.1 Legislation requires that the Police and Crime Panel (“the Panel”) 
membership includes two independent (non-councillor) co-opted 
members.  The term of office of one the current independent 
members, Mrs Sue Whittaker, is due to expire on 31 December 2021.  
Mrs Whittaker is seeking reappointment for a further term of four 
years. 
 

1.2 The Panel may choose to re-appoint Mrs Whittaker as an existing 
independent member for a further term or agree to re-advertise the 
position of independent member and conduct a further recruitment 
exercise to appoint a new independent member. 

 

Page 41

Agenda Item 10



Following the conclusion of the interviews, the cross-party selection panel 
unanimously recommended that only one of the interviewed candidates 
best demonstrated that they met the Panel’s requirements, and agreed 
that the individual would be recommended to the Panel for appointment 
to the independent co-opted member role. 

 
2.4 A similar recruitment process was undertaken and applications for the role 

were invited.  The position was advertised on 28 July 2021, with the 
closing date for receipt of application being 27 August 2021. 

 
2.5 There were three requests for application forms, as well as two telephone 

enquiries.  However, only one application was received for the vacancy.   
 
2.6 As was mentioned in 2.3, Mrs Whittaker was previously interviewed by 

three members of the Panel in 2016.  The Appointments Sub-Committee’s 
unanimous recommendation to the Panel was that Mrs Whittaker be 
appointed for a four year period.  As a result of there being no other 
candidates for the position other than Mrs Whittaker, the Secretary does 
not believe that interviewing the candidate is necessary on this occasion. 

 
2.7 Mrs Chase term of office ends on 27 November 2023, and is therefore 

outside the scope of this report. 
 
 

3. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

3.1 That Mrs Susan Whittaker be appointed to the independent co-opted 
member role on the Humberside Police and Crime Panel for a four year 
term. 

 
 

SECRETARY OF THE HUMBERSIDE POLICE AND CRIME PANEL 
 

Church Square House 
30-40 High Street 
SCUNTHORPE 
North Lincolnshire 
DN15  6NL 
Author: Matthew Nundy 
Date:  23 September 2021 
 
Background Papers used in the preparation of this report 
 
Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011  

 

 
 

 

Page 42



 

 

Page 43



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	5 To take the minutes of the meeting of the panel held on 12 July 2021 as a correct record and authorise the chairman to sign.
	Minutes

	6 Humberside Police and Crime Commissioner - Police and Crime Plan - 2021 - 2025
	7 Humberside Police and Crime Commissioner - Update
	8 Annual Accounts Audit 2020-21
	9 Police and Crime Commissioner Group Finance Summary - Period Ending July 2021
	10 Re-appointment of Independent Member to the Humberside Police and Crime Panel

